Public Document Pack

DISTRICT COUNCIL
NORTH OXFORDSHIRE

Committee: Shareholder Committee

Date: Tuesday 20 December 2016

Time: 2.00 pm

Venue Bodicote House, Bodicote, Banbury OX15 4AA
Membership

Councillor Ken Atack Councillor Barry Wood

Councillor John Donaldson

AGENDA

1. Apologies for Absence

2. Declarations of Interest
Members are asked to declare any interest and the nature of that interest which
they may have in any of the items under consideration at this meeting.

3. Appointment of Chairman for the Municipal Year 2016/2017

4, Chairman's Announcements

To receive communications from the Chairman

5. Graven Hill - Creation of Additional Companies (Pages 1 - 6)

Report of Assistant Director

Cherwell District Council, Bodicote House, Bodicote, Banbury, Oxfordshire, OX15 4AA
www.cherwell.gov.uk



http://www.cherwell.gov.uk/

Purpose of report

To consider a request from Graven Hill Village Holding Company for the creation of
additional subsidiary companies that are required to carry out specific roles required
as part of the delivery of Graven Hill.

Recommendations
The meeting is recommended:

1.1  That approval be given to the creation of a Graven Hill Site Wide
Management Company as a company limited by guarantee and that Graven
Hill Village Holding Company be requested to prepare governance
documents for final approval by the Shareholder representative before
registration and director nominations occur.

1.2  That approval be given to the creation of Individual Apartment Management
Companies as required and that Graven Hill Village Holding Company be
requested to prepare template governance documents for final approval by
the Shareholder representative and then subsequent approval prior to each
Individual Apartment Company being established.

1.3 That the above companies be included within the proposed shareholder
agreement.

Verbal Update on Shareholder Role

Verbal Update by Assistant Director — Transformation Governance

Exclusion of the Public and Press

The following items of business contain exempt information as defined in the
following paragraphs of Part 1, Schedule 12A of Local Government Act 1972.

2 Information which is likely to reveal the identity of an individual

3 Information relating to the financial or business affairs of any particular person
(including the authority holding that information)

4 Information relating to any consultations or negotiations, or contemplated
consultations or negotiations, in connection with any labour relations matter
arising between the authority or a Minister of the Crown and employees of, or
office holders under, the authority.

Members are reminded that whilst the following items have been marked as exempt,
it is for the meeting to decide whether or not to consider each of them in private or in
public. In making the decision, members should balance the interests of individuals
or the Council itself in having access to the information. In considering their
discretion members should also be mindful of the advice of Council Officers.

Should Members decide not to make a decision in public, they are recommended to
pass the following recommendation:



“That, in accordance with Section 100A(4) of Local Government Act 1972, the press
and public be excluded from the meeting for the following items of business, on the
grounds that they could involve the likely disclosure of exempt information as
defined in paragraphs 2, 3 and 4 of Schedule 12A of that Act and that in all the
circumstances of the case, the public interest in maintaining the exemption
outweighs the public interest in disclosing the information.”

8. Director Appointments and Nomination (Pages 7 - 42)

Exempt report of Assistant Director - Transformational Governance

Councillors are requested to collect any post from their pigeon
hole in the Members Room at the end of the meeting.

Information about this Meeting

Apologies for Absence

Apologies for absence should be notified to
natasha.clark@cherwellandsouthnorthants.gov.uk or 01295 221589 prior to the start of
the meeting.

Declarations of Interest

Members are asked to declare interests at item 2 on the agenda or if arriving after the
start of the meeting, at the start of the relevant agenda item.

Local Government and Finance Act 1992 — Budget Setting, Contracts &
Supplementary Estimates

Members are reminded that any member who is two months in arrears with Council Tax
must declare the fact and may speak but not vote on any decision which involves budget
setting, extending or agreeing contracts or incurring expenditure not provided for in the
agreed budget for a given year and could affect calculations on the level of Council Tax.
Evacuation Procedure

When the continuous alarm sounds you must evacuate the building by the nearest
available fire exit. Members and visitors should proceed to the car park as directed by
Democratic Services staff and await further instructions.

Access to Meetings

If you have any special requirements (such as a large print version of these papers or
special access facilities) please contact the officer named below, giving as much notice as
possible before the meeting.

Mobile Phones

Please ensure that any device is switched to silent operation or switched off.


mailto:natasha.clark@cherwellandsouthnorthants.gov.uk

Queries Regarding this Agenda

Please contact Natasha Clark, Democratic and Elections
natasha.clark@cherwellandsouthnorthants.gov.uk, 01295 221589
Sue Smith

Chief Executive

Published on 12 December2016



1.0

11

1.2

1.3

2.0

2.1

Agenda ltem 5

Cherwell District Council
Shareholder Committee

20 December 2016

Graven Hill — Creation of Additional Companies

Report of Assistant Director - Transformational Governance

This report is public

Purpose of report

To consider a request from Graven Hill Village Holding Company for the creation of
additional subsidiary companies that are required to carry out specific roles
required as part of the delivery of Graven Hill.

Recommendations
The meeting is recommended:

That approval be given to the creation of a Graven Hill Site Wide Management
Company as a company limited by guarantee and that Graven Hill Village Holding
Company be requested to prepare governance documents for final approval by the
Shareholder representative before registration and director nominations occur.

That approval be given to the creation of Individual Apartment Management
Companies as required and that Graven Hill Village Holding Company be requested
to prepare template governance documents for final approval by the Shareholder
representative and then subsequent approval prior to each Individual Apartment
Company being established.

That the above companies be included within the proposed shareholder agreement.

Introduction

A necessary consequence of the development process is the requirement to set up
subsidiary companies to carry out specific roles. This was envisaged during the
initial establishment of the Graven Hill entities which currently comprise the Graven
Hill Holding Company (Hold Co.) as parent and its operating subsidiary the Graven
Hill Village Development Company (GHVDC). The purpose of the latter to carry out
development activities necessary to realise profits from the sale of self-build and
other properties both residential and commercial.

Page 1



2.2

3.0

3.1

3.2

The actual requirement for additional subsidiary companies will be determined over
time as the process of development continues and to effect the most efficient
methods of delivery. However, as the development enters the sales phase in
February 2017 the necessity to put in place special purpose vehicles to carry out
specific business needs is clear.

Report Details
Background

The initial company required is a Graven Hill Site Wide Management Company,
which will need to be included within the sale documents. It is then likely that
multiple Individual Apartment Management Companies will be required.
Subsequently and through a future report it is likely that we will receive a request to
establish a Graven Hill Rentals Company.

Graven Hill Site Wide Management Company

The majority of GHVDC freehold title will either be conveyed to purchasers of
residential properties, conveyed to the purchaser of the ground rent freehold
reversion, adopted as public highway or transferred as amenity space to the district
council. However, there is residual land which comprises communal space such as
parking courts and un-adopted roads and footways which benefit some of the
properties on the development but that will not be conveyed to them.

Therefore, some legal entity, a body corporate, that is transparent and accountable
is required to deliver communal obligations and that eventually would be wholly
owned and controlled by the residents who benefit from it. The company (the
residents) will be in charge of setting annual budgets for services they enjoy
communally. This would be the Site Wide Residents Management Company which
will be a subsidiary of Hold Co.

Current convention is that such companies are limited by Guarantee. This simplifies
ongoing administration as there is no annual return and no requirement for
householders to find share certificates on resale of their properties. Each person
(householder) has an interest in the company as a member but this entitlement
only exists if they own a plot. The company can therefore be in the simplest form to
maintain membership records and for ease of transfer of membership when plots
are bought or sold. The companies accounts will effectively be governed by the
very exacting legislation protecting residential management.

To ensure effective governance there will be an obligation to retain a suitably
gualified managing agent to administer and account for service charge collection
and administration.

The company will be non-profit making with the corporate account to be balanced
at year end to zero save for reserve or sinking fund. Any surplus would be carried
forward or re-distributed or if any deficit a surcharge made.

Hold Co would hold a controlling interest in the site wide management company
until the last membership or until such earlier time as it was considered prudent to
relinquish control to the residents.

Page 2



3.3

3.4

4.0

4.1

Individual Apartment Management Companies

The blocks of apartments at Graven Hill will be sold as a long leasehold tenure to
individual purchasers via individual leases derived out of an intervening superior
lease above the freehold. Each apartment sub-lease will attract a ground rent
which is paid up the superior lease landlord. This income stream can be forward
sold for a multiplier of the ground rents to realise a capital receipt. This sale is
assumed within the development viability and must take place prior to the sale of
50% of the apartments to avoid Section 5 (the right of first refusal) under Part 1 of
the Land Lord and Tenant Act 1987 as amended by the Housing Act 1996.

However, a management company will be required as a named party to the
individual residential apartment sub-leases with an obligation to deliver the
communal services to the residential areas of the apartment blocks. Therefore, a
number of management companies will be required to deliver these services to the
apartment blocks dependant on how we divide the various groups of apartments.

The constitution of these companies will identical to the site wide management
company with the exception that each will have a membership of the site wide
management company.

If the apartment contains any commercial or retail space let under a rack rent these
are not members of the apartment management company, but commercial tenants
are surcharged for aspects which they share and enjoy.

Graven Hill Rentals Company (Rent Co.)

In order to rent out these properties to individuals under assured shorthold
tenancies (AST) it will be necessary to incorporate a company to carry out this
activity. In accordance with Trowers advice, as referred to at section 5.0 above, this
company would be a company limited by shares and a subsidiary of Hold Co. The
specific reasoning for a separate Special Purpose Company to do this is as follows:

e rental of the apartment would constitute the grant of a first major interest which
would lose the zero VAT rating for onward sale. It is therefore necessary to
transfer (sell) the relevant apartments from GHVDC to Rent Co at market value
and benefiting from the zero rating for VAT.

e Rent Co would then undertake the letting of these apartments under an AST
either by appointing the services of an established letting agency or resourcing
to carry out this role themselves

e Rent Co. would hold and rent the apartments as Landlord until such time as it
wished to realise the capital receipt associated with the sale of the long
leasehold interest of these apartments.

Conclusion and Reasons for Recommendations

The proposals in this report are designed to ensure that Graven Hill has in place an
effective governance structure to enable it to meet its aims and delivery objectives
and in doing safe guard the councils investment and return on investment. Whilst
the individual apartment management companies are not required at this time, it is
pragmatic for Graven Hill Village Holding Company to procure the legal and

Page 3



5.0

6.0

6.1

7.0

7.1

7.2

technical advice at the same time as the advice for the site wide management
company so that when required appropriate template governance documents are
available.

Consultation

The proposals in this report originate from and have been considered and approved
by both Graven Hill Village Development Company and Graven Hill Village
Management Company. The Assistant Director — Transformational Governance has
also been consulted and confirms that the proposals are required and in line with
the shareholders approach to Graven Hill.

Alternative Options and Reasons for Rejection

The following alternative options have been identified and rejected for the reasons
as set out below.

Option 1: To agree the recommendations
Option 2: To amend the recommendations

Option 3: Not to agree the recommendations. This is not supported as it would
have a detrimental effect on the ability of the Graven Hill project to deliver.

Implications
Financial and Resource Implications

There are no direct financial implications arising from this report at this time.
Graven Hill have confirmed that funding required to obtain legal and technical
advice, register and operate the companies until residents purchase plots is
contained within existing budgets and the Graven Hill loan.

Comments checked by:
Paul Sutton, Chief Finance Officer - 0300 003 0106
paul.sutton@cherwellandsouthnorthants.gov.uk

Legal Implications

The proposals set out in this report are in accordance the shareholder
responsibilities for Graven Hill and the decision making framework. It is noted that
Graven Hill will procure their own legal advice to create the required governance
documents for the proposed companies and these documents will be considered by
the council to ensure that the council’s interests are protected.

Comments checked by:

Kevin Lane, Head of Law and Governance — 0300 0030107
kevin.lane@cherwellandsouthnorthants.gov.uk

Risk Implications

Page 4


mailto:paul.sutton@cherwellandsouthnorthants.gov.uk
mailto:kevin.lane@cherwellandsouthnorthants.gov.uk

The proposals set out in this report mitigate risk to the council in ensuring that
Graven Hill has the correct governance in place and is able to safe guard the
councils investment and make a return on that investment.

Comments checked by:
Ed Bailey Corporate Performance Manager - 01295 221605
edward.bailey@cherwellandsouthnorthants.gov.uk

Decision Information

Key Decision

Financial Threshold Met: No

Community Impact Threshold Met: No

Wards Affected

None directly

Links to Corporate Plan and Policy Framework
None directly

Lead Councillor

Councillors Atack, Donaldson and Wood

Document Information

Appendix No Title

None N/A
Background Papers
None

Report Author James Doble,

Assistant Director - Transformational Governance
Contact 01295 221587

Information james.doble@cherwellandsouthnorthants.gov.uk

Page 5


mailto:edward.bailey@cherwellandsouthnorthants.gov.uk
mailto:james.doble@cherwellandsouthnorthants.gov.uk

This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda ltem 8

By virtue of paragraph(s) 2, 3, 4 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 7



This page is intentionally left blank



By virtue of paragraph(s) 2, 3, 4 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 13



This page is intentionally left blank



By virtue of paragraph(s) 2, 3, 4 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 21



This page is intentionally left blank



By virtue of paragraph(s) 2, 3, 4 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 37



This page is intentionally left blank



	Agenda
	5 Graven Hill - Creation of Additional Companies
	8 Director Appointments and Nomination
	Appendix 1 - EXEMPT
	Appendix 2 - EXEMPT
	Appendix 3 - EXEMPT


